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 Federal Summary 
 

City of Bonney Lake 
Pierce County 

January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 
 
 
The results of our audit of the City of Bonney Lake are summarized below in accordance with 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
An unmodified opinion was issued on the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting: 
 

• Significant Deficiencies:  We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of 
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

 
• Material Weaknesses:  We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. 
 
We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the 
City. 
 
FEDERAL AWARDS 
 
Internal Control Over Major Programs: 
 

• Significant Deficiencies:  We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of 
internal control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant 
deficiencies. 

 
• Material Weaknesses:  We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. 
 
We issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s compliance with requirements applicable to its 
major federal program. 
 
We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed under section 510(a) of OMB Circular 
A-133. 
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Identification of Major Programs: 

 

The following was a major program during the period under audit:  

 

CFDA No. Program Title 
  

20.205 Highway Planning and Construction Cluster – Highway Planning and 

Construction 

 

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by 

OMB Circular A-133, was $300,000. 

 

The City did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133. 
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 Status of Prior Audit Findings 
 

City of Bonney Lake 
Pierce County 

January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 
 
 
The status of finding contained in the prior years’ audit reports of the City of Bonney Lake is 
provided below: 
 
1. The City’s internal controls are inadequate to ensure timely and 

accurate accounting and financial reporting. 
 
Report No. 1011589, dated March 31, 2014 
 
Background 
 
The City reports its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) which require special expertise and more time to prepare 
than other types of financial statements. City management did not dedicate the necessary 
resources, such as staff time and training, to ensure accurate and timely financial 
reporting. 
 
Status 
 
The condition reported during the 2012 audit has been resolved. The 2013 financial 
statements were submitted timely and there were no material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control identified in the current audit. 
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 Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 
City of Bonney Lake 

Pierce County 
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 

 
 
Mayor and City Council 
City of Bonney Lake 
Bonney Lake, Washington 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated September 10, 2014. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
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 material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of the City’s compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  However, 
this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.  It also serves to 
disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government 
operations. 
 

 
 
TROY KELLEY 
STATE AUDITOR 
 
September 10, 2014 
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 Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each 
Major Federal Program and on Internal Control over 
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 

 
City of Bonney Lake 

Pierce County 
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 

 
 
Mayor and City Council 
City of Bonney Lake 
Bonney Lake, Washington 
 
 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM 
 
We have audited the compliance of the City of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, with 
the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2013.  The City’s major 
federal programs are identified in the accompanying Federal Summary.   
 
Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances.    
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s 
compliance.  
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 Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2013.   
 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.  
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 It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess 
government operations. 
 

 
 
TROY KELLEY 
STATE AUDITOR 
 
September 10, 2014 
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 Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements  
 

City of Bonney Lake 
Pierce County 

January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 
 
 
Mayor and City Council 
City of Bonney Lake 
Bonney Lake, Washington 
 
 
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s 
basic financial statements as listed on page 15.   
   
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bonney Lake, as of 
December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 16 through 25,  budgetary comparison 
information on page 57 and the schedule of funding progress and schedule of employer 
contributions for post-employment benefits other than pensions on page 58 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Supplementary and Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations.  This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
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 OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 10, 2014 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
 
TROY KELLEY 
STATE AUDITOR 
 
September 10, 2014 
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 Financial Section 
 

City of Bonney Lake 
Pierce County 

January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 
 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 2013 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Statement of Net Position – 2013 
Statement of Activities – 2013 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds – 2013 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental 

Funds – 2013 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 

Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities – 2013 
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds – 2013 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position – Proprietary Funds 

– 2013 
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds – 2013 
Notes to Financial Statements – 2013 

 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

General Fund – Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – 
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual – 2013 

Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employer Contributions for LEOFF 1 
Retiree Medical Benefits – 2013 

 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION 
 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2013 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2013 
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 City of Bonney Lake 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

For the Year Ending December 31, 2013 

 

The City of Bonney Lake presents this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of its financial 

activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.  This MD&A provides an overview of the City’s 

financial activities, and highlights significant changes in the City’s financial positions. 

 

We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 

information that we have furnished in the financial statements and the notes to the financial statements.  

 

Financial Highlights 

 

 As of December 31, 2013 total assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $ 142.8 million.  Of 

this amount, $ 35.5 million was reported as unrestricted net position, amounts which are available 

for use to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 The City’s net position increased by $ 3.5 million.   

 Capital assets increased approximately $ 1.3 million, largely due to the completion of the Justice 

and Municipal Center.   

 The City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $ 14 million. 

 The General Fund reported an unassigned fund balance of $3 million. 

 

Budget Adjustments 

 

The difference between the original budget and final budget for general fund for the biennium 2013-2014 

totaled an increase of $655,715 in revenues and $787,723 in expenditures.  

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

 

This MD&A is intended to introduce and explain the City’s basic financial statements for fiscal 2013.  

Throughout this document we have included several spreadsheets that compare financial data for fiscal 2013 

to fiscal 2012 in order to provide perspective for financial statement readers. The City’s basic financial 

statements are comprised of three components: 1) Government-wide financial statements; 2) Fund 

financial statements; and 3) Notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other required 

supplementary information (RSI) in addition to the basic financial statements.  

 

Government-wide financial statements   

 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 

City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the 

difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may 

serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.  
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 The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed 

during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 

event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 

expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods 

(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities differentiate the functions of general 

government from the functions of business-type activities.  Governmental activities reflect the City’s 

basic functions such as general government, public safety, transportation and streets, economic 

development, and culture and health & human services are primarily supported by taxes and 

intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities, primarily utilities, are intended to recover their 

costs through user fees and charges.  The City’s utilities include the water distribution system, the sewer 

collection and treatment system and the stormwater collection system.   

 

The City has no separately identified component units and, accordingly, none are included in these 

financial statements. 

 

Fund financial statements 

 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 

segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Bonney Lake, like other state and local 

governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 

requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, 

proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 

activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 

statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 

resources, as well as balances of resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 

useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 

statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 

information presented for governmental activities in the government- wide financial statements. By so 

doing, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing 

decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 

expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 

governmental funds and governmental activities. 

 

The City maintains seven individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the 

governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 

changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Street Construction Fund, Park Construction Fund and 

the General Government Fund which are all considered to be major funds.  Data from the other 

governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of 

these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this 

report. The City adopts a biennial appropriated budget for all of its funds.   
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Proprietary funds 

 

The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same 

functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses 

enterprise funds to account for its Water, Sewer, and Stormwater Funds.  Internal service funds are an 

accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The 

City uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles and to provide insurance coverage for all 

funds and departments.  Because both of these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than 

business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide 

financial statements. 

 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 

in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water, 

Sewer, and Stormwater Funds.  Conversely, both internal service funds are combined into a single, 

aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Data from the other two proprietary 

funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-

major proprietary funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements 

elsewhere in this report. 

 

Notes to the financial statements 

 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 

the government-wide and fund financial statements.  

 

Other information 

 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 

required supplementary information (RSI) concerning the City’s financial results. Combining and 

individual fund statements and schedules for the non-major governmental funds and the internal service 

funds can be found under this section. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Washington State Auditor's Office

_________________________________________________  
 

Page 18



  

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

 

Statement of Net Position 

 

The Statement of Net Position may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.  The 

City’s net position at December 31, 2013 total $142.8 million. The table below summarizes the City’s 

Statement of Net Position for the year ending 2013. 

 

  City of Bonney Lake's Net Position 

          

  Governmental Activities  Business-Type Activities  Total 

          

  2013 2012  2013 2012  2013 2012 

Current and other assets  20,396,716  22,166,988   22,433,747  23,969,852   42,830,463  46,136,840  
Capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation  48,718,156  47,765,489   87,813,310  87,436,923   136,531,466  135,202,412  

Total assets  69,114,872  69,932,477   110,247,057  111,406,775   179,361,929  181,339,252  

          

Long-term liabilities  9,736,080  9,329,489   20,513,325  23,868,040   30,249,405  33,197,529  

Other liabilities  2,563,059  3,921,425   3,763,279  5,138,010   6,326,338  9,059,435  

Total liabilities  12,299,139  13,250,914   24,276,604  29,006,050   36,575,743  42,256,964  

          

Net position:          

  Net investment in capital assets  39,386,621  38,042,161   64,482,746  61,604,007   103,869,367  99,646,168  

  Restricted  485,639  167,654   2,925,814  998,001   3,411,453  1,165,655  

  Unrestricted  16,943,474  18,471,748   18,561,894  19,798,717   35,505,368  38,270,465  

Total net position  56,815,734  56,681,563   85,970,454  82,400,725   142,786,188  139,082,288  

 

 

The most significant portion of 2013 net position (74%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 

land, buildings, equipment, construction in progress, and intangible assets such as water rights and sewer 

capacity); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding.  The City uses these 

capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 

spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 

noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 

assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  

 

The remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($35.5 million) may be used to meet the government's 

ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 

At the end of the 2013 the City reports positive balances in all three categories of net position, both for the 

government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.  
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 Change in Net Position 

 

The changes in net position table illustrates the increases or decreases in net position of the City 

resulting from its operating activities. The table below summarizes the City’s Statement of Activities 

for fiscal 2013:  

 

    City of Bonney Lake's Change in Net Position     

            

    Governmental Activities  Business-Type Activities  Total 

            

Revenues:    2013 2012  2013 2012  2013 2012 

 Program Revenues:          

  Charges for services  4,183,413  4,432,416   15,670,262  14,486,878   19,853,675  18,919,294  

  Operating grants and contributions  653,436  1,329,182   0  21,862   653,436  1,351,044  

  Capital grants and contributions  1,156,391  247,095   501,165  0   1,657,556  247,095  

 General Revenues:          

  Property tax  2,635,753  2,589,335   0  0   2,635,753  2,589,335  

  Sales tax  3,720,172  3,375,197   0  0   3,720,172  3,375,197  

  B&O taxes  2,820,847  1,730,224   0  0   2,820,847  1,730,224  

  Excise taxes  551  493,046   0  0   551  493,046  

  Utility and other taxes  644,574  983,593   0  0   644,574  983,593  

  Investment earnings  59,674  61,200   89,133  39,111   148,807  100,311  

  Miscellaneous revenues  533,146  257,169   119,270  42,817   652,416  299,986  

  
Special Item - Gain (loss) on sale of 
capital asset  (1,211,640) 0   0  0   (1,211,640) 0  

    Total Revenue  15,196,317  15,498,457   16,379,830  14,590,668   31,576,147  30,089,125  

            

Expenses:            

 General Government  4,897,158  4,266,110   0  0   4,897,158  4,266,110  

 Public safety  5,869,101  5,652,386   0  0   5,869,101  5,652,386  

 Physical environment  14,103  788,548   0  0   14,103  788,548  

 Transportation  1,745,818  1,800,619   0  0   1,745,818  1,800,619  

 Health and human services  39,658  359,039   0  0   39,658  359,039  

 Economic environment  1,654,985  1,352,458   0  0   1,654,985  1,352,458  

 Culture and recreation  412,809  387,682   0  0   412,809  387,682  

 Interest on long-term debt  428,514  447,486   0  0   428,514  447,486  

 Water   0  0   6,595,773  6,044,804   6,595,773  6,044,804  

 Sewer   0  0   5,040,981  5,000,806   5,040,981  5,000,806  

 Stormwater   0  0   1,373,493  1,252,152   1,373,493  1,252,152  

  Total Expenses  15,062,146  15,054,328   13,010,247  12,297,762   28,072,393  27,352,090  

            

   Increase (Decrease) in net position  134,171  444,129   3,369,583  2,292,906   3,503,754  2,737,035  

 Transfers   0  0   0  0   0  0  

          0  0  

  Change in net position  134,171  444,129   3,369,583  2,292,906   3,503,754  2,737,035  

            

 Net position - beginning  56,681,563  56,237,434   82,400,725  80,107,819   139,082,288  136,345,253  

 Prior period adjustment  0  0   200,145  0   200,145  0  

 Net position - ending  56,815,734  56,681,563   85,970,453  82,400,725   142,786,187  139,082,288  
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As illustrated in the total column, the most significant justification for the increase in business type 

activities is reflected in the revenue line item titled “charges for service.”  This category includes plan 

check and review fees as well as inspection fees, which are all associated with building and construction 

activities within our community and thus may be construed as an economic indicator that the slowdown 

in construction activity may be waning.  Further monitoring and analysis are required to substantiate this 

conclusion, however. The total Change in Net Position is $ 3,503,755. 

 

Fluctuations in the category “Operating Grants and Contributions” are normal as these revenues are 

derived mainly from the State of WA and other governmental entities in the form of grant funding.  

Economical and/or financial impacts within the city’s varying granting agencies tends to have a trickle-

down effect to the City of Bonney Lake in the form of less grant opportunities available.     

     

Governmental activities 

 

 

There is a small increase in total net position of $ 134,171. Governmental activities accounts 

for 39.79% of the City’s net position in 2013. 

 
Key elements of the 2013 changes are as follows: 

 

 Total assets from Governmental activities decreased by $ 817,606.  Cash and cash equivalents 

showed a decrease of $ 2,685,315 from 2012 to 2013 while investments in capital assets 

increased by $ 1.3 million  (after a loss of $1,211,640 from selling a piece of land and a value of 

$2,556,730 removed from fixed assets).  This is the result of the City’s plans for investments in 

capital assets, particularly the completion of the Justice & Municipal Center, and improvements 

surrounding this building.  

 

 Total liabilities from Governmental activities decreased by $951,777.  Accounts payable and 

other liabilities decreased by $951,775 and $683,022 respectively. 

 

 Total general revenues decreased by $ 312,787.  This decrease is mainly related to a loss on sale 

of capital asset in 2013. 

 

 Total expenditures increased by $7,818.  As mentioned above, this increase is due to the City’s 

investments in capital assets 

 

The graph below compares program revenues to program expenses from the Statement of Activities and 

illustrates the revenue by source separately for the governmental activities in 2013 
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Business-type activities 

 

The total net position increased by $3,569,729.  Business-type activities accounts for 60.2% of 

the City’s net position. 

 

Key elements of this increase are as follows: 

 

 Investment in capital assets increased by $952,667 between 2012 and 2013 

 

 Revenues increased by $1,076,677. 
 

 Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $1,4 million but accounts payable and long –

term debt decreased by $ 824,068 and $ 3,391,778 respectively. 

 

The graph below compares program revenues to program expenses from the Statement of Activities and 

illustrates the revenue by source separately for the business-type activities in 2013 
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Capital Assets 

 

The following table summarizes the City’s capital asset balances at December 31, 2013:  

 

 

 

City of Bonney Lake's Capital Assets 
         

 Governmental Activities  Business-Type Activities Total 
 2013 2012  2013 2012  2013 2012 

Land 13,744,357  16,204,716   1,725,671  1,675,671   15,470,028  17,880,387  
Construction in progress 7,537,572  5,781,742   3,142,442  5,481,242   10,680,014  11,262,984  
Buildings 7,479,401  7,079,316   7,149,831  4,645,090   14,629,232  11,724,406  
Improvements other that buildings 7,877,788  6,037,078   48,505,446  46,723,833   56,383,234  52,760,911  
Infrastructure 9,177,189  9,683,904   0  0   9,177,189  9,683,904  
Machinery and equipment 567,434  553,147   17,938  53,906   585,372  607,053  
Rolling stock 2,334,416  2,425,588   0  0   2,334,416  2,425,588  
Leasehold improvements 0    14,323,725  14,809,275   14,323,725  14,809,275  
Intangible assets 0     12,948,258  14,047,945   12,948,258  14,047,945  

  Total 48,718,157  47,765,491   87,813,311  87,436,962   136,531,468  135,202,453  
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 Changes occurred in several asset categories as a result of normal operating activity; and, appropriately 

valuing and recording infrastructure assets. The City has many construction projects underway and, 

accordingly, the above table reflects this activity.    

 

Long-Term Debt 

At the end of 2013, the City of Bonney Lake had total debt outstanding of $32.6 million. This debt is 

comprised of general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, installment contracts, and public works trust fund 

loans.  

 

 

Long-Term Debt Outstanding Balances 

 

 Governmental Business Type Total 

General obligation bonds 8,400,000  8,400,000 

PWTF Loans 0 17,727,901 17,727,901 

Revenue bonds 0 2,720,000 2,720,000 

Installment contracts 931,535 2,880,368 3,811,903 

Total 9,331,535 23,328,269 32,659,804 

 

 

The City’s total debt decreased by $3.8 million, due to annual debt service payments. 

Additional information on the City of Bonney Lake’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6. 

 

Economic Factors and Other Information 

 

The City of Bonney Lake is considered, at a regional level, as a balanced community with a residential 

character that conserves natural amenities while supporting a diverse mix of economic activities.  The 

City promotes a safe, attractive and healthful living environment for residents to participate in various 

physical, educational, economic and social activities.  The city’s tax base remains sufficient to provide a 

high level of accountable, accessible and efficient local government services.  The City is an active 

participant in interlocal as well as regional services and planning organizations.   

 

Regional 

Strategically located in the easterly region of Pierce County, the City of Bonney Lake provides 

unparalleled opportunities generally associated with a more rural setting.  Bonney Lake is a mere 20 

minute commute to the City of Tacoma, which is the second largest city within the state.  Seattle, the 

largest city in our state, is located within an approximate 40 minute commute northbound.  This attractive 

proximity allows our residents the affordability and density of a suburb yet the relative close amenities 

such as arts and entertainment in addition to job opportunities more frequently associated with a major 

City.  

 

The City enjoys close proximity to major employment centers, including Joint Base Lewis-McCord, 

Multi-Care Health System (including Good Samaritan Hospital), Franciscan Health Center, the Port of 

Tacoma, and the Seattle-Tacoma International Airport.  Further information on these centers can be found 

at the Tacoma-Pierce County Chamber of Commerce website at www.tacomachamber.org.  
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Local  

The economy continues to dominate local official’s current outlook as changing conditions influence the 

city’s overall fiscal picture.  As an example: when consumer confidence is moderate to high, people tend 

to expend more on goods and services; and, as a result city governments reap the benefit through increased 

sales tax collections.  The struggling economy, however, and the declining real estate market have reduced 

consumer confidence resulting in less consumer spending ultimately leading to declining sales tax 

revenues.   

 

For the first few years of the current decade consumer spending was also fueled by a strong real estate 

market that in turn provided robust revenues through local property taxes.  Property tax revenues are 

driven primarily by the value of residential and commercial property, with property tax bills determined 

by an assessment of the value of property.  Pursuant to the Pierce County Assessor-Treasurer, current 

property values continue to decline county wide.  As a result, property tax revenues will continue to 

dwindle until local assessments catch up with changes in the real estate market.   

 

With national economic indicators pointing to continued struggles for the near term, the city continues a 

very conservative approach to budgeting and forecasting.  We have predicted little growth in major 

sources of revenues and conversely have estimated expenditures, very conservatively as well.  We have 

acknowledged that the economy will not rebound to pre-recession levels quickly, thus continued financial 

vigilance is imperative for future sustainability.  

 

As part of our overall review of fiscal policies, management and executive teams have committed to 

nurture economic growth in order to sustain the current health of the community as well as strategically 

positioning ourselves into the future.  In order to accomplish this initiative city leaders have developed a 

strategic plan that looks back upon the past decade where fund balances have grown due to robust 

economic conditions.  These decades of historically high fund balances have provided a “cushion” in 

anticipation of unpredictable events such as natural disasters and economic downturns.  In much the same 

fashion as a personal savings account, fund balances have been built up deliberately to set aside funds for 

planned events such as future capital projects.  

  

 

 

Requests for Information 

 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an 

interest in the government's financial accountability.  Questions concerning any of the information 

provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Finance 

Department; City of Bonney Lake, 9002 Main Street East, P.O. Box 7380, Bonney Lake, WA 98391-

0944.  Personal inquiries may be directed to Tony Cullerton, Senior Accountant, at (253) 447-4316, 

culletont@ci.bonney-lake.wa.us and/or Al Juarez, Chief Financial Officer, at (253) 447-4314, 

juareza@ci.bonney-lake.wa.us.   
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CITY OF BONNEY LAKE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2013 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of the City of Bonney Lake have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting nd financial reporting 
principles. The significant accounting policies are described below. 
 
A.  Reporting Entity 
 

The City of Bonney Lake, organized as a non-chartered code city, was incorporated in 1949 utilizing the 
Mayor/Council form of government. The City’s legislative authority, the City Council, consists of a Mayor 
and seven Council members who are elected to overlapping four-year terms of office. The Council is 
responsible for assuring citizen representation through policy direction and adoption of local codes and 
legislation. 

 
B.  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements  
 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect 
of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, 
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function or segment. The City’s policy is to allocate indirect costs to a specific function or segment. Program 
revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements or a particular function or segment. Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  
 
Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the funds’ 
financial statements. 

 
C.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

The government-wide financial statements are reported focusing on the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund statements. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City of Bonney Lake 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 
The City of Bonney Lake considers property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year 
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end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, 
debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, 
are recorded only when payment is due. 

 
Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated within the current period are all considered to be susceptible 
to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special 
assessment receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue 
of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the City of Bonney Lake. 

 
The City of Bonney Lake reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
• The General Fund is the City’s operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 

government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
• The Street Construction Fund is used for capital purposes such as roads, streets, sidewalks and street 

lights. 
• The Park Construction Fund is used for capital improvements that are parks related. 
• The General Government Construction Fund is used for all other general capital purposes. 
 
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:  
 
• The Water Fund accounts for the activities of water distribution for the City. The City operates its own 

water distribution system.  
• The Sewer Fund accounts for the sewer collection activities for the City. The City operates its own 

sewage pumping stations and collection systems, and has a capacity agreement with the City of Sumner, 
who operates the wastewater treatment plant.  

• The Stormwater Fund accounts for the activities of stormwater treatment and disposal. 
 
Additionally, the City of Bonney Lake reports the following fund types: 
 
Internal Service Funds account for fleet management services and insurance provided to other departments of 
the government on a cost-reimbursement basis. 
 
As a general rule the effect of the interfund activity has been eliminated for the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes where the amounts are reasonably 
equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the government’s water and 
sewer function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the 
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers, 2) operating grants and contributions, 
and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. General revenues include all taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water, Sewer, and 
Storm funds are water distribution and sewage collection. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and 
internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues 
and expenses. 
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D.  Budgetary Information 
 

1. Scope of Budget 
 

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, some special revenue, and debt service funds on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Budgets for debt service and capital project funds are adopted at the 
level of the individual debt issue or project and for fiscal periods that correspond to the lives of debt issues or 
projects.  
 
Other budgets are adopted at the level of the fund, except in the general (current expense) fund, where 
expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the department level and the budgets constitute the legal 
authority for expenditures at that level. 
 
Appropriations for general and special revenue funds laps at year-end (except for appropriations for capital 
outlays, which are carried forward from year to year until fully expended or the purpose of the appropriation 
has been accomplished or abandoned). 
 
Encumbrances accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders, 
contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as reservation of fund balances and do not constitute 
expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and honored during the subsequent 
year.   
 
Amending the Budget  
The city administrator, CFO, and mayor are authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments 
within any fund, however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of a fund, or that affect the number of 
authorized employee positions, salary ranges, hours, or other conditions of employment must be approved by 
the city council.  
 
When council determines that it is in the best interest of the city to increase or decrease the appropriation for a 
particular fund, it may do so by resolution approved by one more than the majority after holding public 
hearing(s).  
 
The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts as revised during the 
year.  
 
The financial statements contain the original and final budget information. The original budget is the first 
complete appropriated budget. The final budget is the original budget adjusted by all reserves, transfers, 
allocations, supplemental appropriations, and other legally authorized changes applicable for the fiscal year.  

 
E.  Assets, Liabilities, Fund Balance, Net Position 
 

1.  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
It is the City’s policy to invest all temporary cash surpluses. At December 31, 2013, the treasurer was holding 
$37,579,051 in cash and cash equivalents. This amount is classified on the balance sheet as cash and cash 
equivalents in various funds. The interest on these investments is prorated to the various funds.  
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City of Bonney Lake considers all highly liquid investments 
(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
2.  Investments  
 
Investments are valued at fair market value. 

 
(See additional information at Note 4B.) 
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3.  Receivables 
 
Taxes receivable consists of property taxes and related interest and penalties. Accrued interest receivable 
consists of amounts earned on investments, notes, and contracts at the end of the year.  
 
Special assessments are recorded when levied. Special assessments receivable consist of current and 
delinquent assessments and related interest and penalties. Deferred assessments on the fund financial 
statements consist of unbilled special assessments that are liens against the property benefited. As of 
December 31, 2013, $5,442.31 of special assessments receivable were delinquent.  
 
Customer accounts receivable consist of amounts owed from private individuals or organizations for goods 
and services including amounts owed for which billings have not been prepared. Notes and contracts receivable 
consist of amounts owed on open account from private individuals or organizations for goods and services 
rendered.  
 
4.  Amounts Due To and From Other Funds, Governments, and Interfund Loans 
 
Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of 
the fiscal year are referred to as either interfund loans receivable/payable or advances to/from other funds. All 
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to/from other funds. Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-
wide financial statements as internal balances.   
 

(See additional information at Note 6.) 
 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve 
account in applicable government funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not 
expendable available financial resources. 
 
5.  Inventories  
 
Inventories in governmental funds consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded 
as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are purchased. The reserve for inventory is equal to 
the ending amount of inventory to indicate that a portion of the fund balance is not available for future 
expenditures. A comparison to market value is not considered necessary. 

 
Inventories in proprietary funds are valued by the LIFO method (which approximates the market value). 
 
6. Restricted Assets and Liabilities 
 
These accounts contain resources for construction and debt service, including current and delinquent special 
assessments receivable, in enterprise funds. The current portion of related liabilities is shown as Payables 
from Current Restricted Assets. Specific debt service reserve requirements are described in Note 6, Long-
Term Debt.  

  
7. Capital Assets See note 5, Capital Assets. 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns 
in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, 
individual purchase price of $5,000 or greater and an estimated useful life in excess of two years, or, for 
infrastructure assets, with an initial purchase price of $50,000 or more and a useful life of greater than 20 
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 
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Costs for additions or improvements to capital assets are capitalized when they increase the effectiveness or 
efficiency of the asset. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized.   
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred 
during the construction phase of the capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the 
capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest expense incurred by the City of Bonney Lake 
during the current fiscal year is $711,396. 
  
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight line method over 
the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Asset Type  Years 
Office furniture  10 
Computer equipment  4 - 5 
Vehicles  5 - 7 
Machinery and equipment  5 - 50 
Other improvements  30 - 40 
Buildings and structures  45 - 50 

 
For assets acquired in and subsequent to 2007, no depreciation is taken in the acquisition year; rather, a full 
year of depreciation is taken in the year subsequent to acquisition and each year thereafter. Upon disposition, 
a full year of depreciation is taken in the year of disposition.  
 
For assets acquired in the year 2006 and prior, depreciation is calculated according to the month of 
acquisition. For example, assets acquired in April in year 2006 or prior were calculated with eight months of 
depreciation in the first year. Subsequent years are calculated with a full twelve months of depreciation. 
Similarly, upon disposition, depreciation is calculated based on the month of disposition.  
 

 
8.  Compensated Absences 
Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation (and sick) leave. All 
vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements. 
 
Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to a maximum of 240 hours or 30 days, is payable upon 
resignation, retirement or death.  

 
In accordance with the provisions of GASB No. 16, Accounting for “Compensated Absences,” no liability is 
recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. However, a liability is recognized 
for that portion of accumulating sick leave benefits that it is estimated will be taken as “terminal leave” prior 
to retirement. Sick leave may accumulate up to a maximum of 960 hours. After 5 years employment, 25% of 
accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of 720 hours is payable upon resignation or layoff. Upon retirement, 
or death, 100% of accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of 720 hours is payable. 
 
9.  Other Accrued Liabilities  
These accounts consist of accrued wages and accrued employee benefits. 
 
10.  Long-Term Obligations 
See Note 6, Long-Term Debt.  
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11. Unearned Revenues   
This account includes amounts recognized as receivables but not revenues in governmental funds because the 
revenue recognition criteria have not been met. 
 
12. Fund Balance Classification 

 The City of Bonney Lake reports the following about fund balance classification policies and procedures:  
 
a. Restricted – amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external parties 

either constitutionally or through enabling legislation.  
 

b. Committed – amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by formal   
action of the City Council. Commitments may be changed or lifted by referring to the formal 
action that imposed the constraint originally.  

c. Unassigned – includes all amounts not contained in other classifications and is the residual 
classification of the general fund only. Unassigned amounts are available for any legal purpose. 

 
The responsibility for designating funds to specific classifications shall be as follows: 
 

Committed Fund Balance – The City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority, 
and the formal  action that is required to be taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance 
commitment is established by ordinance approved by the Council.  
 

When multiple categories of fund balance are available for expenditure, the City will start with the 
most restricted category and spend those funds first before moving down to the next category with 
available funds. 
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13. Fund Balance Details 
 

2013 Fund Balance Classification 

    
General 

Fund 

Street 
Construction 

Fund 

Park  
Construction 

Fund 
General Gov 
Construction 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Nonspendable 0  0  0  0  0  

  Long-term portion of loans receivable           

  Non-financial assets held for resale           

              

Restricted             

  Street Construction Fund           

  Park Construction Fund           

  General Gov Construction Fund           

  Drug Investigation Fund         24,819  

  Restr Cash - Infrastructure Deposits 12,000          

  Engineering Deposits 200          

  Future Debt Payments           

              

              

Committed             

  Petty Cash 1,325          

     Interfund Loan     200,145      

  Capital Commitments           

              

Assigned     4,573,115  1,171,028  4,325,388    

  Future Debt Payments           

     2008 Justice Center 295,000          

     Motorola 800 MHz 190,639          

              

              

Unassigned   3,256,412          

              

              

Total Fund Balance 3,755,576  4,573,115  1,371,173  4,325,388  24,819  
 

 
NOTE 2 – VIOLATIONS OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL OR CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS 
 

There have been no material violations of finance-related legal or contractual provisions. 
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NOTE 3 – PROPERTY TAXES 
 

The county treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the county for all taxing 
authorities.  
 

Property Tax Calendar 
January 1 Taxes are levied and become an enforceable lien against properties. 
February 14 Tax bills are mailed. 
April 30 First of two equal installment payments is due. 
May 31 Assessed value of property established for next year's levy at 100 percent of market value. 
October 31 Second installment is due. 

 
Property taxes are recorded as a receivable and revenue when levied. Property taxes collected in advance of 
the fiscal year to which it applies is recorded as deferred inflow and recognized as revenue of the period to 
which it applies. No allowance for uncollectible taxes is established because delinquent taxes are considered 
fully collectible. Prior year tax levies were recorded using the same principal, and delinquent taxes are 
evaluated annually. 

 
The city may levy up to $3.60 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general governmental services. 
 
Washington State Constitution and Washington State law, RCW 84.55.010, limit the rate.  
 

NOTE 4 – DEPOSTIS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

A. Deposits 
 
The city deposits and certificates of deposit are entirely covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or by 
collateral held in multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit 
Protection Commission (PDPC). 
 
Deposit custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure, the city’s deposits may not be recovered. 
The Federal Deposit Insurance Commission (FDIC) insures the City’s deposits up to $250,000. The 
Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (WPDPC) insures amounts over $250,000. The WPDPC 
is a multiple financial institution collateral pool established by state statute, to protect public funds against 
loss. At year-end 2012, the bank balances of deposits were entirely insured through the FDIC and the 
WPDPC. The City had no custodial credit risk for deposits for the year ended 2012. 

 
B. Investments 
  

During 2013, the City had its entire investment in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), which is an 
unrated 2a-7 like pool, as defined by GASB 31.  Accordingly, participants’ balances in the LGIP are not 
subject to interest rate risk, as the weighted average maturity of the portfolio will not exceed 60 days. Per 
GASB 40 guidelines the balances are also not subject to custodial credit risk. The credit risk of the LGIP is 
limited as most investments are either obligations of the US government, government sponsored enterprises, 
or insured demand deposit accounts and certificates of deposit. Investments or deposits held by the LGIP are 
either insured or held by a third-party custody provider in the LGIP’s name. The fair value of the City’s pool 
investments is determined by the pool’s share price. The City has no regulatory oversight responsibility for 
the LGIP which is governed by the Washington State Finance Committee and is administered by the State 
Treasurer. The LGIP is audited annually by the Office of the State Auditor, an independently elected public 
official. The City includes the LGIP as an investment for internal tracking, but it is disclosed on the financial 
statements as a cash equivalent. 
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As of December 31, 2013, the City had a fair value of investment in the Local Government Investment Pool 
amounted to $34,271,855.  

 
NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

A summary of capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Beginning Prior Period Ending
Balance Adjustment Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 16,204,716$  -$                96,371$         (2,556,730)$  13,744,357$  
Construction in progress 5,781,741        -                   4,233,658     (2,477,827)     7,537,572        

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 21,986,457     -                   4,330,029     (5,034,557)     21,281,929     

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 11,162,834     -                   871,047         -                       12,033,881     
Improvements other than buildings 7,767,129        -                   2,244,876     -                       10,012,005     
Machinery and equipment 2,571,357        -                   120,490         -                       2,691,847        
Rolling Stock 5,664,975        -                   382,554         (315,606)         5,731,922        
Infrastructure 17,541,221     -                     -                       17,541,221     

Total capital assets being depreciated 44,707,515     -                   3,618,967     (315,606)         48,010,875     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (4,083,518)      -                   (470,962)        -                       (4,554,480)      
Improvements other than buildings (1,730,051)      -                   (404,166)        -                       (2,134,217)      
Machinery and equipment (2,018,210)      -                   (106,203)        -                       (2,124,413)      
Rolling Stock (3,239,387)      -                   (469,225)        311,106           (3,397,506)      
Infrastructure (7,857,318)      -                   (506,713)        -                       (8,364,032)      

Total accumulated depreciation (18,928,485)   -                   (1,957,269)   311,106           (20,574,648)   

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 25,779,030     -                   1,661,697     (4,500)               27,436,227     

Governmental activities capital assets, net 47,765,487$  -$                5,991,726$  (5,039,057)$  48,718,156$  

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 1,675,671$     50,000$         -$                    1,725,671$     
Construction in progress 5,481,242        3,449,129     (5,787,929)     3,142,442        

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 7,156,913        3,499,129     (5,787,929)     4,868,113        

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 6,156,685        2,627,116     -                       8,783,801        
Leasehold Improvements 19,422,000     -                     -                       19,422,000     
Improvements other than buildings 61,003,203     3,125,887     -                       64,129,090     
Machinery and equipment 867,590            -                     -                       867,590            
Intangible assets 25,046,675     34,926            -                       25,081,601     

Total capital assets being depreciated 112,496,152  5,787,929     -                       118,284,081  

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (1,511,595)      -                     (122,375)         (1,633,970)      
Leasehold Improvements (4,612,725)      -                     (485,550)         (5,098,275)      
Improvements other than buildings (14,279,370)   -                     (1,344,274)     (15,623,644)   
Machinery and equipment (813,684)           -                     (35,968)            (849,652)           
Intangible assets (10,998,730)   -                     (1,134,613)     (12,133,343)   

Total accumulated depreciation (32,216,104)   -                     (3,122,780)     (35,338,884)   

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 80,280,048     5,787,929     (3,122,780)     82,945,197     

Business-type activities capital assets, net 87,436,961$  9,287,058$  (8,910,709)$  87,813,310$  
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Governmental activities:     

General government 
 

 $         396,749  

Public safety 
 

            451,909  

Physical Environment 
 

            270,069  

Transportation 
 

            715,267  

Health & Human Services 
 

              32,155  

Economic Environment 
 

                6,169  

Culture & Recreation 
 

              84,951  

  
 

  

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 
 

 $      1,957,269  

  
 

  

Business-type activities: 
 

  

Water 
 

 $      1,611,402  

Sewer 
 

         1,352,288  

Stormwater 
 

            159,090  

  
 

  

Total depreciation expense - business type activities 
 

 $      3,122,780  
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At year end the City’s commitments were as follows: 

Governmental Activities   
Spent-to-

Date   Remaining Commitment 
Streets Capital Projects (301) 

   
  

  Overlay Angeline Rd. S.  
 $          
402,720     $                   1,780  

  Transportation Comp Plan- Roadways 
               
55,026                      169,974  

  Church Lake Rd-Kelly Lk Rd Overlay 
               
46,346                      516,154  

  
Angeline 111- Panorama 
Overlay  

               
73,732                        19,268  

  DT 186th Corridor St Improvements 
               
42,078                      957,922  

  Sumner BuckleyHwy -SR 410 to Main St.Intersection 
          
2,707,436                   4,992,564  

  214th Ave Intersection Imprmt  
             
829,794                      887,206  

  Main Street/SR 410 Intersection  
          
2,805,434                        18,566  

  Sidewalks-SR410-Angeline Bridge-192nd 
             
126,344                      923,656  

Subtotal Street Capital 
Improvement Fund 

 

          
7,088,910                   8,487,090  

  
  

      
Parks Capital Projects (302) 

 
      

  
  

      

  Fenell Crk Trail / Safe Routes - Sidewalks 
          
1,465,915                      657,085  

  Allen York Park Improvements 
 

                       
-                        130,000  

  Allen York Park- Dike#13 
 

             
327,328                        22,672  

  Allen York Park- Sport/Tennis Court 
               
57,428                        50,572  

  Victor Falls Park 
 

             
383,756                        16,244  

Subtotal Parks Capital Improvement 
Fund 

 

          
2,234,427                      876,573  

  
  

      
  

  
      

General Government Capital 
Projects (320) 

 
      

  Justice& Municipal Center & Improvments              
871,047                                -    

  Civic Center 
 

             
115,382                      134,618  

  
  

      
General Government Capital 
Projects (325) 

 
      

  NONE 
 

                       
-        

Subtotal General Government Capital Improvement Fund 
             
986,429                      134,618  

  
  

      

Total Governmental Funds 
 

 $     
10,309,766     $            9,498,281  
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The City of Bonney Lake issues general obligation bonds to finance the construction of the Justice Center. 
Bonded indebtedness has also been entered into (currently ad in prior years) to advance/refund several general 
obligation and revenue bonds. General obligation bonds have been issued for both general government and 
business-type activities are being repaid from the applicable resources. The revenue bonds are being repaid by 
proprietary fund revenues. The City of Bonney Lake is also liable for notes that were entered into for the 
purchasing of Motorola 800MHz radios. This note is considered obligations of the general government and 
are being repaid with general governmental revenue sources.     
 
General Obligation Bonds 
At December 31, 2013, the general obligation bonds payable consist of the following issues for governmental 
activities: 
 
 

Purpose 
Maturing 

Range Interest Rate Original Amount 
Amount of 
Installment 

Justice Center 25 Yrs. 3.15% - 4.0% 10,000,000  285,000  
 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revenue Bonds 
The revenue bond currently outstanding is as follows: 
 

Purpose 
Maturing 

Range 
Interest 

Rate 
Original 
Amount 

Amount of 
Installment 

Refund 1998 & 1999 Revenue 
Bonds  6 yrs.  

 35.% - 
4.0%  4,570,000  430,000  

 
Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
 

  Governmental Activities 
Year Ending Principal Interest 

2013 285,000  376,100  
2014 295,000  364,700  
2015 305,000  352,900  
2016 320,000  340,700  
2017 330,000  327,900  

2018 - 2032 7,150,000  2,743,175  
      
Totals 8,685,000  4,505,475  

Year Ending Principal Interest 
2013 430,000  126,420  
2014 445,000  109,220  
2015 465,000  91,420  
2016 475,000  72,820  
2017 495,000  53,820  
2018 415,000  34,020  
2019 425,000  17,213  

Totals 3,150,000  504,933  
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Public Works Trust Fund Loans 
At December 31, 2013, the Public Works Trust Fund loans payable consist of the following: 
 
 

 
Installment Contracts 
At December 31, 2013, installment contracts consisted of the following: 
 
 

Purpose Maturing Date Interest Rate Original Amount Amount of 
Installment 

Motorola 800 MHz 2018 4.54% 1,938,528  180,224  
City of Tacoma 2015 5.88% 5,776,598  462,128  
Cascade Water Alliance 2018 0.0% 2,747,334  391,222  

 
Installment contract debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
 

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

31-Dec Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2013              180,224.20  
          
48,428.31               462,127.84  

      
17,377.27  

2014              190,638.72  
          
40,059.34               462,127.84  

      
11,553.20  

2015              199,391.96  
          
31,306.10               462,127.84  0 

2016              208,547.09  
          
22,150.97  0 0 

2017              218,122.59  
          
12,575.47  0 0 

2018              114,834.29  
             
2,560.29  0 0 

          

Totals         1,111,758.85  
       
157,080.48          1,386,383.52  

      
28,930.47  

 
 
 

   

 
     Due in Due in More 12/31/13 

Fund Loan # Description 
1 Year 
(2014) Than 1 Year O/S Bal 

401 PW-97-791-017 Ponderosa Reservoir #2 - Construction 50,468  151,404  201,872  
401 PW-98-78898-07 Corrosion Control Facility 14,974  74,872  89,846  
401 PW-98-78898-08 Lakeridge Booster Pump Station 37,657  188,286  225,944  
401 PW-98-791-006 Ponderosa Reservoir #2 - 800 Zone Overflow Construction 14,995  59,981  74,976  
401 PW-00-691-008 McGhee Water Main Replacement 38,306  229,838  268,145  
401 PW-03-691-003 Spring Sources Water Quality Treatment Facilities 63,715  573,439  637,155  
401 PW-04-691-008 Ball Park Well Water Quality Treatment Facility 178,676  1,786,765  1,965,441  
401 PW-04-691-009 Leak Reduction Program 247,456  2,474,557  2,722,012  
401 PW-05-96-791-004 Church Lake/Inlet Island Watermain Replacement 66,057  132,114  198,171  
401 PW-PC-08-951-004 Leak Reduction Program Phase II 208,437  2,918,120  3,126,557  
402 PW-02-691-006 Sumner Sewer Treatment Plant Upgrade 373,047  2,984,376  3,357,423  
402 PW-04-691-007 Sumner Sewer Treatment Plant Upgrade 105,450  1,054,500  1,159,950  
402 PW-06-962-ELP-302 Emergency Sewer Main Replacement 26,316  315,789  342,105  
402 PW-PC-08-951-005 Reconstruct Trunk Sewer to Sumner WWTP 151,868  2,305,717  2,457,585  
402 PC-12-951-045 Sumner /Bonney Lake Wastwater Treatment Plant Upgrade 50,040  850,679  900,719  

  
    

  
    Totals 1,627,464  16,100,437  17,727,901  
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Interfund Loans and Advances 
 
Within the City, one fund may borrow from another when specifically authorized by a City Council 
resolution. The activity and balances of the interfund loan at December 31, 2013 is as follows: 
 

Lending Fund Borrowing Fund Balance at 1/1/2013 Additions Reductions Balance at 12/31/13 
Sewer Fund Park CIP 1,289,798    (200,145) 1,089,653  

 
Interfund contract debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
 

Year Ending Principal Interest 
2013 200,145  1,337  
2014 200,145  23,954  
2015 200,145  12,269  
Totals 600,436  37,560  

 
NOTE 7 – CHANGE in LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities: 
 

Governmental Activities 
Beginning 

Bal.     
Ending 

Balance, 
Description 1/1/2013 Additions Reductions 12/31/2013 

  
   

  
2007 G.O. Debt-Justice Center 8,685,000  

 
285,000  8,400,000  

Motorola 800 MHz Equipment 1,111,759  
 

180,224  931,535  
OPEB Payable 54,131  17,190  0  71,321  
Compensated Absences 833,051  52,824  0  885,875  
  

   
  

Total Governmental Activities 10,683,941  70,014  465,224  10,288,731  

  
   

  
Business Type Activities 

   
  

     Public Works Trust Fund Loans:  
   

  
PW 97-791-017 Ponderosa Const 252,340  

 
50,468  201,872  

PW 98-78898-07 Corrosion Control 104,820  
 

14,974  89,846  
PW 98-78898-08 Lakeridge Pmp Sta. 263,601  

 
37,657  225,944  

PW 98-791-006 Ponderosa Overflow 89,972  
 

14,996  74,976  
PW 00-691-008 McGhee Drive Water 306,451  

 
38,306  268,145  

PW 03-691-003 Spring Source H2O 700,870  
 

63,715  637,155  
PW 04-691-008 Ballpark Well treatmnt 2,144,118  

 
178,676  1,965,442  

PW 04-691-009 Leak Reduction Pgm 2,969,468  
 

247,455  2,722,013  
PW 5-96-791-004 Church Lake Main 264,228  

 
66,057  198,171  

PC 08-951-004 Leak Reduction II 3,138,752  267,600  279,797  3,126,555  
PW 02-691-006 Sumner Trt Plnt 3,730,470  

 
373,047  3,357,423  

PW 04-691-007 Sewer Trt Plnt Upgde 1,265,400  
 

105,450  1,159,950  
PW 06-962-ELP-302 Reconst Sewr to 368,421  

 
26,316  342,105  

PC 08-951-005 Reconstruct Swr line 3,827,125  
 

1,369,540  2,457,585  
PC 12-951-045 Waste Water Treatment 
Plnt 442,454  489,852  31,587  900,719  
Sutotoal Trust Fund Loans 19,868,490  757,452  2,898,042  17,727,899  
  

   
  

2007 Water/Sewer Refunding Bonds 3,150,000  
 

430,000  2,720,000  
City of Tacoma Syst Dev Chgs 1,386,383  

 
462,128  924,255  

Cascade Water Alliance 2,347,334  
 

391,222  1,956,112  
Compensated Absences 111,077  4,103  0  115,180  
Subtotal Other Debt 6,994,794  4,103  1,283,350  5,715,547  
  

   
  

Total Business Type Activities 26,863,284  761,555  4,181,392  23,443,446  
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NOTE 8 – POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
A.  Pension Plans 
 
All City of Bonney Lake full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the following 
statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems, under 
cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans. The 
Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State of 
Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to: 
Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380. The 
following disclosures are made pursuant to GASB Statements No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local 
Government Employers and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27. 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plans 1, 2, and 3 
 
Plan Description 
PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for membership 
purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution 
component. 

 
Membership in the system includes: elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals, and 
Superior courts (other than judges currently in a judicial retirement system); employees of legislative committees; 
community and technical colleges, college and university employees not participating in national higher education 
retirement programs; judges of district and municipal courts; and employees of local governments. 
 
PERS participants who joined the system by September 30, 1977 are Plan 1 members. Those who joined on or 
after October 1, 1977 and by either, February 28, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or August 31, 
2002 for local government employees, are Plan 2 members unless they exercise an option to transfer their 
membership to Plan 3. PERS participants joining the system on or after March 1, 2002 for state and higher 
education employees, or September 1, 2002 for local government employees have the irrevocable option of 
choosing membership in either PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must be exercised within 90 days of 
employment. An employee is reported in Plan 2 until a choice is made. Employees who fail to choose within 90 
days default to PERS Plan 3. Notwithstanding, PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 members may opt out of plan membership 
if terminally ill, with less than five years to live. 

 
PERS defined benefit retirement benefits are financed from a combination of investment earnings and employer 
and employee contributions. PERS retirement benefit provisions are established in state statute and may be 
amended only by the State Legislature. 
 
PERS Plan 1 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 1 members are 
eligible for retirement after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60 with five years of service, or at the age of 55 
with 25 years of service. The annual benefit is two percent of the average final compensation (AFC) per year of 
service, capped at 60 percent. (The AFC is based on the greatest compensation during any 24 eligible consecutive 
compensation months.) Plan 1 members who retire from inactive status prior to the age of 65 may receive 
actuarially reduced benefits. The benefit is actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor option. A cost-of 
living allowance (COLA) is granted at age 66 based upon years of service times the COLA amount, increased by 
three percent annually. Plan 1 members may also elect to receive an optional COLA amount that provides an 
automatic annual adjustment based on the Consumer Price Index. The adjustment is capped at three percent 
annually. To offset the cost of this annual adjustment, the benefit is reduced. 
 
PERS Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 2 members may retire 
at the age of 65 with five years of service with an allowance of two percent of the AFC per year of service. (The 
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AFC is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible consecutive 60-month period.) Plan 2 members 
who retire prior to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age 55 or older with at least 30 years 
of service, a three percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial reduction will apply. The benefit is 
also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap on years of service credit; and a 
cost-of-living allowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index), capped at three percent annually. 
 
Plan 3 has a dual benefit structure. Employer contributions finance a defined benefit component, and member 
contributions finance a defined contribution component. The defined benefit portion provides a benefit calculated 
at 1 percent of the AFC per year of service. (The AFC is based on the greatest compensation during any eligible 
consecutive 60-month period.) Effective June 7, 2006, Plan 3 members are vested in the defined benefit portion of 
their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service, if twelve months of that service are earned after 
age 44; or after five service credit years earned in PERS Plan 2 prior to June 1, 2003. Plan 3 members are 
immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan. Vested Plan 3 members are eligible to retire 
with full benefits at age 65, or they may retire at age 55 with 10 years of service.  Plan 3 members who retire prior 
to the age of 65 receive reduced benefits. If retirement is at age 55 or older with at least 30 years of service, a 
three percent per year reduction applies; otherwise an actuarial reduction will apply. The benefit is also actuarially 
reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap on years of service credit, and Plan 3 provides 
the same cost-of-living allowance as Plan 2. The defined contribution portion can be distributed in accordance 
with an option selected by the member, either as a lump sum or pursuant to other options authorized by the 
Employee Retirement Benefits Board. 
 
There are 1,184 participating employers in PERS. Membership in PERS consisted of the following as of the latest 
actuarial valuation date for the plans of June 30, 2011:  
 

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 79,363            

Terminated Plan Members Entitled To But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 29,925            

Active Plan Members Vested 105,578          

Active Plan Members Nonvested 46,839            

Total 261,705          

 
 
Judicial Benefit Multiplier 
Beginning January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2011, judicial members of PERS were given the choice to 
participate in the Judicial Benefit Multiplier Program (JBM). Justices and judges in PERS Plan 1 and 2 were able 
to make a one-time irrevocable election to pay increased contributions that would fund a retirement benefit with a 
3.5% multiplier. The benefit would be capped at 75% of AFC. The City of Bonney Lake has one employee 
enrolled in this program. Judges in PERS Plan 3 could elect a 1.6% of pay per year of service benefit, capped at 
37.5% of average compensation. 
Members who chose to participate in JBM would: accrue service credit at the higher multiplier beginning with the 
date of their election, be subject to the benefit cap of 75% of AFC, pay higher contributions, stop contributing to 
the Judicial Retirement Account (JRA), and be given the option to increase the multiplier on past judicial service. 
Members who did not choose to participate would: continue to accrue service credit at the regular multiplier; 
continue to participate in JRA, if applicable; never be a participant in the JBM Program; and continue to pay 
contributions at the regular PERS rate. 
 
Newly elected or appointed justices and judges who chose to become PERS members on or after January 1, 2007, 
or who had not previously opted into PERS membership, were required to participate in the JBM Program. 
Members required into the JBM program would: return to prior PERS Plan if membership had previously been 
established; be mandated into Plan 2 and not have a Plan 3 transfer choice, if a new PERS member; accrue the 
higher multiplier for all judicial service; not contribute to JRA; and not have the option to increase the multiplier 
for past judicial service. 
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Funding Policy 
Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates, Plan 2 employer 
and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 employer contribution rates. Employee contribution rates for Plan 1 
are established by statute at six percent for state agencies and local government unit employees, and at 7.5 percent 
for state government elected officials. The employer and employee contribution rates for Plan 2 and the employer 
contribution rate for Plan 3 are developed by the Office of the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined 
benefit portion of Plan 3. All employers are required to contribute at the level established by the Legislature. 
Under PERS Plan 3, employer contributions finance the defined benefit portion of the plan, and member 
contributions finance the defined contribution portion. The Employee Retirement Benefits Board sets Plan 3 
employee contribution rates. Six rate options are available ranging from 5 to 15 percent; two of the options are 
graduated rates dependent on the employee’s age. As a result of the implementation of the Judicial Benefit 
Multiplier Program in January 2007, a second tier of employer and employee rates was developed to fund, along 
with investment earnings, the increased retirement benefits of those justices and judges that participate in the 
program. The methods used to determine the contribution requirements are established under state statute in 
accordance with Chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW. 
 
The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year covered payroll, as of December 31, 
2012, were as follows: 
 

PERS - Plan 1 PERS - Plan 2 PERS - Plan 3

Employer * 7.21%** 7.21%** 7.21%***

Employee 6%**** 4.64%**** *****

Members Not Participating in JBM

 
 
 * The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee 
 currently set at 0.16%. 
 
 ** The employer rate for state elected officials is 10.74% for Plan 1 and 
 7.21% for Plan 2 and Plan 3. 
 
 *** Plan 3 defined benefit portion only. 
 
 **** The employee rate for state elected officials is 7.50% for Plan 1 and 4.645 
 for Plan 2. 
 
 ***** Variable from 5.0% minimum to 15.0% maximum based on rate selected 
 by the PERS 3 member. 
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PERS - Plan 1 PERS - Plan 2 PERS - Plan 3

Employer * 7.21% 7.21% 7.21%
Employee 12.26% 11.60% 7.50% **

* The employer rates include the employer adminstrative 
   expense fee currently set at 0.16%.
** Minimum rate

Members Participating in JBM

 
 
Both the City of Bonney Lake and the employees made the required contributions.  The City of Bonney Lake’s 
required contributions for the years ended December 31 were as follows: 
 

                

    
PERS - 
Plan 1   

PERS - 
Plan 2   

PERS - 
Plan 3   

                
2012          15,994         384,657           52,402    
2011          12,688         319,186           43,475    
2010          10,559         259,474           32,207    

                
 
Law Enforcement Officers’ and Fire Fighters’ Retirement System (LEOFF) Plans 1 and 2 
 
Plan Description 
LEOFF is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of two separate defined benefit plans. 
LEOFF participants who joined the system by September 30, 1977 are Plan 1 members. Those who joined on or 
after October 1, 1977 are Plan 2 members. Membership in the system includes all full-time, fully compensated, 
local law enforcement officers, firefighters and, as of July 24, 2005, those emergency medical technicians who 
were given the option and chose LEOFF Plan 2 membership. LEOFF membership is comprised primarily of non-
state employees, with Department of Fish and Wildlife enforcement officers, who were first included 
prospectively effective July 27, 2003, being an exception. 
 
Effective July 1, 2003, the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board was established by Initiative 790 to provide 
governance of LEOFF Plan 2. The Board’s duties include adopting contribution rates and recommending policy 
changes to the Legislature for the LEOFF Plan 2 retirement plan. 
LEOFF defined benefit retirement benefits are financed from a combination of investment earnings, employer and 
employee contributions, and a special funding situation in which the state pays through state legislative 
appropriations. LEOFF retirement benefit provisions are established in state statute and may be amended by the 
State Legislature. 
 
LEOFF Plan 1 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 1 members are 
eligible for retirement with five years of service at the age of 50. The benefit per year of service calculated as a 
percent of final average salary (FAS) is as follows: 
 

Term of Service Percent of Final Average Salary 
20 or more years 2.0% 
10 but less than 20 years 1.5% 
5 but less than 10 years 1.0% 
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The FAS is the basic monthly salary received at the time of retirement, provided a member has held the same 
position or rank for 12 months preceding the date of retirement. Otherwise, it is the average of the highest 
consecutive 24 months’ salary within the last ten years of service. A cost-of-living allowance is granted (based on 
the Consumer Price Index). 
 
LEOFF Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 2 members may 
retire at the age of 50 with 20 years of service, or at the age of 53 with five years of service, with an allowance of 
two percent of the FAS per year of service. The FAS is based on the highest consecutive 60 months. Plan 2 
members who retire prior to the age of 53 receive reduced benefits. Benefits are actuarially reduced for each year 
that the benefit commences prior to age 53 and to reflect the choice of a survivor option. If the member has at 
least 20 years of service and is age 50, the reduction is three percent for each year prior to age 53. There is no cap 
on years of service credit; and a cost-of-living allowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index), capped 
at three percent annually. 
 
There are 373 participating employers in LEOFF. Membership in LEOFF consisted of the following as of the 
latest actuarial valuation date for the plans of June 30, 2011: 
 

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 9,974              

Terminated Plan Members Entitled To But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 656                 

Active Plan Members Vested 13,942            

Active Plan Members Nonvested 3,113              

Total 27,685            

 
 
 
Starting on July 1, 2000, LEOFF Plan 1 employers and employees contribute zero percent as long as the plan 
remains fully funded. Employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State Actuary 
to fully fund the plan. LEOFF Plan 2 employers and employees are required to pay at the level adopted by the 
LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board. All employers are required to contribute at the level required by state law. 
 
The Legislature, by means of a special funding arrangement, appropriated money from the state General Fund to 
supplement the current service liability and fund the prior service costs of LEOFF Plan 2 in accordance with the 
requirements of the Pension Funding Council and the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board.  However, this special 
funding situation is not mandated by the state constitution and this funding requirement could be returned to the 
employers by a change of statute. 
 
The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year covered payroll, as of December 31, 
2012, were as follows: 
 

LEOFF - Plan 1 LEOFF - Plan 2

Employer * 0.16% 5.24%

Employee 0.00% 8.46%

* The employer rates include the employer administrative

expense fee currently set at 0.16%.
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Both the City of Bonney Lake and the employees made the required contributions.  The City of Bonney Lake’s 
required contributions for the years ended December 31 were as follows: 
 

    LEOFF - Plan 1   LEOFF - Plan 2   
        

2012  0  132,254    
2011  0  130,251    
2010   0   132,840    

 
NOTE 9 – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
1. Association of Washington Cities Employee Benefit Trust (“Trust”) 
Trust Description: In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 7, the City of Bonney Lake is a 
participating employer in the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) Employee Benefit Trust, a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer welfare benefit plan administered by the Association of Washington Cities. The Trust provides 
medical benefits to certain eligible retired employees of participating employers and their eligible family 
members. Under Article VII of the Trust document, the Trustees have the authority and power to amend the 
amount and the nature of the medical and other benefits provided by the trust. The Trust issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the Trust. 
That report, along with a copy of the Trust document, may be obtained by writing to the Association of 
Washington Cities Employee Benefit Trust at 1076 Franklin Street, Olympia, WA 98501-1346 or calling 1-800-
562-8981. 
 
Funding Policy: The plan is administered by a trust or equivalent arrangement in which employer contributions to 
the trust are irrevocable; plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to retirees and their beneficiaries in 
accordance with the terms of the plan, and plan assets are legally protected from creditors of the employers or 
plan administrator.  
 
In 2013, there were 274 employers enrolled in the AWC Employee Benefit Trust Membership. All the risks, 
rewards, and costs, including benefit costs, are shared and are not attributed individually to the employers. A 
single actuarial valuation covers all plan members, and the same contribution rate(s) apply to each employer.  
 
The Trust provides that contribution requirements of participating employers and of participating employees, 
retirees, and other beneficiaries, if any, are established and may be amended by the Board of Trustees of the Trust. 
Retirees of the City receiving medical benefits from the Trust contribute as follows: 
 

Coverage Type Monthly Cost 
Non-Medicare enrolled retiree only $715.00 
Non-Medicare enrolled retiree + spouse $1,430.00 
Medicare enrolled retiree + Non-Medicare enrolled spouse $1,286.00 
Non-Medicare enrolled retiree + Medicare enrolled spouse $1,109.00 
Medicare enrolled retiree + Medicare enrolled spouse $965.00 

 
Participating employers are contractually required to contribute at a rate assessed each year by the Trust. The 
City’s contributions to the Trust for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $0, as the City has no participating 
retirees within the AWC Trust.  
 
GASB reporting standards are required for Post-Employment Benefits Plans Other than Pension Plans, or OPEB. 
The AWC has chosen to adopt the reporting standards. All costs, liabilities, interest rates, and other factors have 
been determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions and methods which are individually reasonable (taking into 
account experience and reasonable expectations); and which, in combinations, offer the best estimate of 
anticipated experience. 
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2. Law Enforcement Officers and Firefighters (LEOFF) 
 
Plan Description: As required by the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) Chapter 41.26, the City provides 
lifetime medical care for members of the Law Enforcement Officers and Firefighters (LEOFF) retirement system 
hired before October 1, 1977, under a defined benefit plan administered by the City. This plan is commonly 
referred to as LEOFF 1. The City provides LEOFF 1 post-employment benefits for one retired law enforcement 
employee.  
 
Under the LEOFF 1 healthcare reimbursements, the plan member has no required contributions. The City is 
required to pay all healthcare expenses incurred by LEOFF 1 retirees. The City’s cost is reduced by any amounts 
retirees receive from Medicare or any other health plans. LEOFF 1 retirees may request reimbursement for 
healthcare expenses that are not paid by their primary healthcare plan.  
 
Amendments to the plan may be made through State statute. 
 
Membership: Membership in LEOFF 1 includes participants who joined the system by September 30, 1977. As of 
December 31, 2013, one City employee meets this requirement. This is considered a closed group. No new 
members are permitted. 
 
Funding Policy: Funding for LEOFF 1 retiree healthcare costs is provided entirely by the City as required by 
RCW. The City’s funding policy is based upon pay-as-you-go financing requirements. Retirees are not required to 
contribute any portion of the cost coverage. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The City’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost is 
calculated based upon the annual required contribution (ARC), and amount actuarially determined in accordance 
with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over 
a period of fifteen years as of January 1, 2013. 
 
The City was required to contribute $31,461 (Annual Required Contribution, or ARC), but only contributed 
$11,568 at December 31, 2013. For the City’s single retired LEOFF 1 member, the City purchased health 
insurance from the United Benefit Trust. The retired law enforcement employee received a benefit contribution of 
$964 per month, or $11,568 per year, for retiree-only coverage. This differs from the Annual Required 
Contribution (ARC) because the plan is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The difference between the OPEB 
Costs and the required contribution is called the Net OPEB Obligation (NOO).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Determination of Required Annual Contribution 
Fiscal Year Ending 

12/31/2013 
  Normal Cost   
  Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (UAAL) 31,461  
  Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 31,461  
    
Determination of Net OPEB Obligation   
  Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 31,461  
  Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 2,165  
  Net OPEB Obligation Amortization (4,869) 
  Annual OPEB Cost 28,758  
  Contributions Made (11,568) 
  Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 17,190  
    
NET OPEB OBLIGATION - January 1, 2013 54,131  
NET OPEB OBLIGATION - December 31, 2013 71,321  
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The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of OPEB contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation is as 
follows: 
 

Year 
Annual 

OPEB Cost 
Employer 

Contribution 
% of OPEB 

Contribution 
Net OPEB 
Obligation 

2013 28,758  11,568  40.2% 72,321  
2012 21,578  10,056  46.6% 54,131  
2011 21,787  8,748  40.2% 44,121  
2010 23,179  7,608  32.8% 16,327  

 
As of January 1, 2013, the plan was 0% funded. The accrued liability for benefits was $349,795 and the actuarial 
valuation of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $349,795.  
 
Methodology and Actuarial Assumptions: The City used the alternative measurement method permitted under 
GASB Statement No. 45. A single retirement age of 56.24 was assumed for all active members for the purpose of 
determining the AAL and normal cost. Retirement, disablement, termination, and mortality rates were assumed to 
follow the LEOFF 1 rates used in the June 30, 2012 actuarial valuation report issued by the Office of the State 
Actuary (OSA). Healthcare costs and trends were determined by Milliman and used by OSA in the state-wide 
LEOFF 1 medical study performed in 2012. The results were based on grouped data with 4 active groupings and 4 
inactive groupings. The actuarial cost method used to determine the AAL was Projected Unit Credit. The AAL 
and NOO are amortized on an open basis as a level dollar over 10 years. These assumptions are individually and 
collectively reasonable for the purposes of this valuation.  
 
NOTE 10 INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
 
Pursuant to new legislation, the City transferred $88,590 from REET 2 to the General Fund. This amount was 
budgeted in the General Fund as a result of Legislative changes that allow REET to be used in a more broad 
fashion. 
 
Interfund transfers at December 31, 2013 were as follows: 
 

BARS Account From Amount To Amount BARS 
208.000.000.288.20.00.00 Undesignated Fund Balance 208 (27,059.59) 126 27,059.59  126.000.000.288.20.00.00 
233.000.000.288.20.00.00 Undesignated Fund Balance 233 8,849.64  301 (8,849.64) 301.000.000.288.250.00.00 
325.000.000.111.00.00.00 Equity in Pooled Cash 325 (33,747.02) 320 33,747.02  320.000.000.111.00.00.00 
 
NOTE 11 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 
 
A prior period adjustment of $200,145 is reflected in the Sewer Fund. This adjustment reflects an understatement 
of receivables. In the prior year, the City reported a payment to the Sewer Fund that was not received, 
understating the receivable. That adjustment is also reflected in the Statement of Activities (Business-type).  
 
NOTE 12 – OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 

A.  Risk Management 
 

The City of Bonney Lake is a member of the Washington Cities Insurance Authority (WCIA).  Utilizing 
Chapter 48.62 RCW (self-insurance regulation) and Chapter 39.34 RCW (Interlocal Cooperation Act), nine 
cities originally formed WCIA on January 1, 1981. WCIA was created for the purpose of providing a pooling 
mechanism for jointly purchasing insurance, jointly self-insuring, and/or jointly contracting for risk 
management services. WCIA has a total of 126 Members. 
 
New members initially contract for a three-year term and thereafter automatically renew on an annual basis. A 
one-year withdrawal notice is required before membership can be terminated. Termination does not relieve a 
former member from its unresolved loss history incurred during membership. 
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Liability coverage is written on an occurrence basis, without deductibles. Coverage includes general, 
automobile, police, public officials’ errors or omissions, stop gap, and employee benefits liability. Limits are 
$3 million per occurrence self-insured layer, and $12 million per occurrence in the re-insured excess layer. 
The excess layer is insured by the purchase of reinsurance and insurance and is subject to aggregate limits. 
Total limits are $15 million per occurrence subject to aggregate sub limits in the excess layers.  The Board of 
Directors determines the limits and terms of coverage annually. 
 
Insurance coverage for property, automobile physical damage, fidelity, inland marine, and boiler and 
machinery are purchased on a group basis. Various deductibles apply by type of coverage. Property insurance 
and auto physical damage are self-funded from the members’ deductible to $500,000, for all perils other than 
flood and earthquake, and insured above that amount by the purchase of reinsurance. 
In-house services include risk management consultation, loss control field services, claims and litigation 
administration, and loss analyses. WCIA contracts for the claims investigation consultants for personnel 
issues and land use problems, insurance brokerage, and lobbyist services. 
 
WCIA is fully funded by its members, who make annual assessments on a prospectively rated basis, as 
determined by an outside, independent actuary. The assessment covers loss, loss adjustment, and 
administrative expenses. As outlined in the interlocal, WCIA retains the right to additionally assess the 
membership for any funding shortfall. 
 
An investment committee, using investment brokers, produces additional revenue by investment of WCIA's 
assets in financial instruments which comply with all State guidelines. These revenues directly offset portions 
of the membership's annual assessment. 
 
A Board of Directors governs WCIA, which is comprised of one designated representative from each 
member. The Board elects an Executive Committee and appoints a Treasurer to provide general policy 
direction for the organization. The WCIA Executive Director reports to the Executive Committee and is 
responsible for conducting the day to day operations of WCIA. 
 
In the prior three years, settlements did not exceed the City’s insurance coverage. 
 

B. Subsequent Events 
 
Prior to 2013, the City has been reporting its receivables at full value. Subsequent to the 2013 balance sheet 
date, the City adopted an A/R write off policy. The City has since written down is receivables by 
approximately 65% from what was reported at December 31, 2013. A schedule of receivable balances as of 
5/1/14 is detailed below. 
 

 

Account 2013 2014 Variance % of Change

 

001.000.000.121.10.00.00   TAXES RECEIVABLE 19,935  19,935  0    
001.000.000.121.30.00.00   TAXES RECEIVABLE-DELINQUENT 147,395  146,483  (913)   
001.000.000.122.10.00.00   ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 741,591  154,271  (587,320)   
001.000.000.122.10.10.00   ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - WORKING 55,847  0  (55,847)   
001.000.000.122.90.00.00   ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS (12,812) (3,040) 9,772    
510.000.000.122.10.00.00   ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 98,024  64,232  (33,791)   
301.000.000.121.10.00.00   TAXES RECEIVABLE 51,782  0  (51,782)   
301.000.000.122.10.00.00   ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 395,075  394,875  (200)   
301.000.000.122.10.10.00   ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - WORKING 101,357  0  (101,357)   
301.000.000.123.10.00.00   Special Assessment Receivable - Current 6,409  6,409  0    
301.000.000.123.50.00.00   Interest Receivable on Assessments 15  15  0    
302.000.000.121.10.00.00   TAXES RECEIVABLE 36,247  0  (36,247)   
302.000.000.122.10.00.00   ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (84,350) 0  84,350    
302.000.000.122.10.10.00   ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - WORKING 770,418  0  (770,418)   
320.000.000.121.10.00.00   TAXES RECEIVABLE 15,535  0  (15,535)   
120.000.000.122.10.00.00   ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22  0  (22)   

Total 2,342,489  783,180  (1,559,309) -66.6%

 

 
 
Washington State Auditor's Office

_________________________________________________  
 

Page 56



 

 
 
Washington State Auditor's Office

_________________________________________________  
 

Page 57



 

 
 
Washington State Auditor's Office

_________________________________________________  
 

Page 58



 
M

C
A

G
 #

0
5

6
7

C
it

y 
of

 B
on

n
ey

 L
ak

e

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 O

F 
EX

P
EN

D
IT

U
R

ES
 O

F 
FE

D
ER

A
L 

A
W

A
R

D
S

Fo
r 

Y
ea

r 
En

di
n

g 
D

ec
em

be
r 

3
1

, 2
0

1
3 G
R

AN
TO

R
/

FE
D

ER
AL

O
TH

ER
FE

D
ER

AL
 P

R
O

G
R

AM
 T

IT
LE

D
IR

EC
T /

CF
D

A
ID

EN
TI

FI
CA

TI
O

N
PA

SS
-T

H
R

O
U

G
H

D
IR

EC
T

N
O

TE
IN

D
IR

EC
T

N
U

M
BE

R
N

U
M

BE
R

AW
AR

D
S

AW
AR

D
S

TO
TA

L
R

EF
ER

EN
CE

U
.S

. D
EP

T.
 O

F 
JU

ST
IC

E:
P

ie
rc

e 
C

ou
n

t y
Ed

w
ar

d 
By

rn
e 

M
em

or
ia

l F
or

m
ul

a 
G

ra
nt

 P
ro

gr
am

 (
D

EA
)

IN
D

IR
EC

T
16

.5
79

-
21

,8
08

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

21
,8

08
   

   
  

Ed
w

ar
d 

B y
rn

e 
M

em
or

ia
l J

us
tic

e 
As

si
st

an
ce

 G
ra

nt
 (

TN
ET

)
IN

D
IR

EC
T

16
.7

38
20

,0
04

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

20
,0

04
   

   
  

Bu
lle

t p
ro

of
 V

es
t 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

Pr
og

ra
m

D
IR

EC
T

16
.6

07
2,

19
5

   
   

   
2,

19
5

   
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
U

.S
. D

EP
T.

 O
F 

JU
ST

IC
E

4
1

,8
1

2
-

4
4

,0
0

7

U
.S

. D
EP

T.
 O

F 
TR

A
N

SP
O

R
TA

TI
O

N
:

W
A

 S
ta

te
, D

ep
t 

of
 T

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
H

i g
hw

ay
 P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

IN
D

IR
EC

T
20

.2
05

SR
TS

-P
B-

31
61

(0
02

)
67

8,
33

8
   

   
   

   
 

67
8,

33
8

   
   

W
A

 S
ta

te
, T

ra
ff

ic
 S

af
et

y 
C

om
m

is
si

on

   
St

at
e 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 H

ig
hw

ay
 S

af
et

y
IN

D
IR

EC
T

20
.6

00
N

H
TS

A/
W

iD
AC

 2
01

1-
12

1,
33

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

33
0

   
   

   
 

   
St

at
e 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

it y
 H

ig
hw

ay
 S

af
et

y
IN

D
IR

EC
T

20
.6

00
W

TS
C 

20
12

-1
3

6,
13

5
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

6,
13

5
   

   
   

 
Ch

ild
 S

af
et

y 
&

 C
hi

ld
 B

oo
st

er
 S

ea
ts

 I
nc

en
tiv

e 
G

ra
nt

IN
D

IR
EC

T
20

.6
13

K3
13

-0
1/

03
13

4,
55

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
13

4,
55

0
   

   
Al

co
ho

l I
m

pa
ire

d 
D

riv
in

g 
Co

un
te

rm
ae

su
re

s 
In

ce
nt

iv
e 

G
ra

nt
s 

I/
D

U
I 

Em
ph

as
is

IN
D

IR
EC

T
20

.6
01

W
TS

C 
20

12
-1

3
4,

15
7

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
4,

15
7

   
   

   
 

W
A

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

 o
f 

Sh
er

if
s 

&
 P

ol
ic

e 
C

h
ei

fs
   

St
at

e 
an

d 
Co

m
m

un
it y

 H
ig

hw
ay

 S
af

et
y

IN
D

IR
EC

T
20

.6
00

W
AS

PC
 0

16
11

1,
40

9
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

40
9

   
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
U

.S
. D

EP
T.

 O
F 

TR
A

N
SP

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

8
2

5
,9

1
9

-
8

2
5

,9
1

9

W
A

 S
ta

te
, P

ar
ks

 a
n

d 
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 C

om
m

is
si

on
Bo

at
in

g 
Sa

fe
ty

 F
in

an
ci

al
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
IN

D
IR

EC
T

97
.0

12
LE

91
1-

42
1

9
,5

3
1

-
   

   
   

   
9

,5
3

1

TO
TA

L 
FE

D
ER

A
L 

A
SS

IS
TA

N
C

E
8

7
7

,2
6

2
$

2
,1

9
5

$
8

7
9

,4
5

7
$    

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

to
 t

he
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

of
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

of
 F

ed
er

al
 A

w
ar

ds
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

hi
s 

Sc
he

du
le

.

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
ES

FE
D

ER
A

L

 
 
Washington State Auditor's Office

_________________________________________________  
 

Page 59



 

City of Bonney Lake 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

 

 

 

NOTE 1 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Basis of accounting - The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is prepared on the same basis of 
accounting as the City’s financial statements. 
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 ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE 

The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive 
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and 
serves four-year terms. 

We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for 
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater 
public trust. 

In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public 
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and 
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees. 

As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively 
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards 
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws. 

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the 
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of 
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local 
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.  

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available 
on our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.  

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical 
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program. 

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office 

Deputy Director for Communications 

 

 

 Thomas Shapley 

Thomas.Shapley@sao.wa.gov 

 (360) 902-0367 

Public Records requests  (360) 725-5617 

Main telephone  (360) 902-0370 

Toll-free Citizen Hotline  (866) 902-3900 

Website www.sao.wa.gov 
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http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/FraudProgram.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/Whistleblower.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/CitizenHotline.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://portal.sao.wa.gov/saoportal/Login.aspx
mailto:Thomas.Shapley@sao.wa.gov
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